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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN

The Members and the Board of Trustees

Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

#5 Don Francisco St., Don Enrique Heights
Commaonwealth Avenue, Bray. Holy Spirit, Quezon City

We have audited the financial statements of Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization) (the Association), for the year ended December 31, 2016 on which
we have rendered the attached report dated April 10, 2017.
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Certified Public Accountant

PRACTITIONER'S COMPILATION REPORT

The Board of Trustees and Members

KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFITS ASSOCIATION, INC.
Rm 504 F&L Bldg,, Commonwealth Ave,,

Bgy Holy Spirit, Q.C,

1 have compiled the accompanying financial statements of KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL
BENEFITS ASSOCIATION, INC. based on the information you have provided. These
financial statements for KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFITS ASSOCIATION, INC.: which
comprise the statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance of KASAGANA-KA
MUTUAL BENEFITS ASSOCIATION, INC. as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the
statements of revenues and expenses, statements of changes in fund balance and
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

| performed this compilation engagement in accordance with Philippine Standard on
Related Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements.

I have applied my expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the
preparation and presentation of these financial statements on the basis of Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards. | have complied with relevant ethical requirements,
including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care.

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used
to compile them are your responsibility,

Since a compilation engagement Is not an assurance engagement, I am not required to
verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to me to compile
these financial statements. Accordingly, | do not express an audit opinion or a review
conclusion on whether these financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

BOA Accreditation No. 0436
BIR Accreditation No, 07-000502-2-2015

April 10, 2017

Unit 4088 Web Jet Bldg, Ouezon Ave. comer BMA Ave, Q.C. Emuail Addrews: chitobarmnco@yahoo.com
Telepbone No. (632) 345-8453, 7110506 Maobile Phone: (63) 917-8000913
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KASAGANA-KA
Mutual Benafit Association, Inc.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of Kasagana Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. is responsible for all information
and representations contained In the Annual Income Tax Retum for the year ended December 31,
2016. Management is likewise responsible for ail information and representations contained in the
financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting
period. Furthermore, the management is responsible for all information and representations
contained in all the other tax retumns filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the
Value-Added Tax and/or percentage tax retums, withholding tax retums, documentary stamp tax
returns, and any and all other tax retums.

In this regard, the management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Retumn are in accordance with
the books and records of the Assocfation, complete and correct in all materfal respects. Management
likewise affirms that:

(a) the Annual Income Tax Retum has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Natfonal Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax
return pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and
maintained n the Association’s books and records in accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances; and

(c) the Association has filed all applicable tax retums, reports and statements required to be
filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions
shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those
contested in good faith.

e : : » : - . (. ; - : »
ISABEL ILIW-ILIW ISABEL ILIW-ILIW
Chairman of the Board President
.I AP 4 s 1
, MARISSA LOYOLA

Y | Treasurer

—

Signed this 10th day of April, 2017

#5 Don Francisco Street, Don Endque Helghts, Brgy. Holy Spit Commonwealth Ave., Quezon Cify
Velefox: (63] 990-7915
Emoait: kenogonako mbo@amall.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
The Members and the Board of Trustees e e X TS

Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc,
#5 Don Francisco St., Don Enrique Heights
Commonwealth Avenue, Brgy. Holy Spirit, Quezon City

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kasagana-Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.,
(A Nonstock, Monprofit Organization) (the Association), which comprise the statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in fund balance and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Association as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (the Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibitities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinfon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management 15 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with PFRS for SMES and for such internal control as management determines s necessary o
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Parent Association's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Parent
Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial preparation

process.
Roxas Cruz Tagle and Co,, o lpmwmlpam»,hnmmdmmtemm Limited, a UK
limited by guarantee. BDO is the brand name for the 800 network and for each of the BDO member Mns. L




Auditor’s Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor’s report that
Include our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit s conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, Individually or In the
aggregate, they reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decistons of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements,

As part of our audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue
as a going concern

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.



Report on the Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, The supplementary Information as disclosed In Note 24 to the financial statements is
presented for purposes of filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinjon, the information fs fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE & CO,
(FORMERLY ALBA ROMEO & CO.)

WPV
Leticia C. Tagle

Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0017358
Tax |dentification No. 123-048-280
PTR No, 5917851, issued on January 9, 2017, Makati City
BOA/PRC Reglstration No, 0005, issued on December 1, 2015,
effective until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No, 1583-A (Individual), Group A, Issued on September 6, 2016,
effective until September 6, 2019
SEC Accreditation No. 0007-FR-4 (Firm), Group A, issued on July 16, 2015,
effective until July 15, 2018
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001682-6-2014, issued on January 5, 2015,
effective until January 4, 2018

April 10, 2017
Makati City, Philippines



KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC.
(a Nar-stack, Nat-for-profit Association)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
Note 2016 2015
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents P56,953,300 P43,960,526
Recelvables 7 3,825,671 1,747,37%
Qther current assets 340,429 173,274
Total current assets 61,122,400 46,881,179
Noncurrent assets
Avaflable-for-sale financial assets 9 15,393,796 15,615,501
Held-to-maturity Investments 10 86,678,366 75,678,366
Advances to contractor 1 1,219,366 .
Property and equipment, net 2 422,412 490,543
Other noncurrent assets 13 253,406 .
Total noncurrent assets 103,967,346 91,764,810
Total assets P165,089,746 P138,665,989
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current labilities
Trade and other payabies 14 P947,821 P330,032
Liability on Individual equity value 15 3,922,456 4,154,143
Aggregate resarve for trust Hability 15 6,854 684 6,285,454
Basic contingent benefit reserve 15 200,509 164,503
Optional benefit reserve 15 748,406 761,668
Claims payable on basic contingent benefit 16 486,273 268,175
Total current Habllities 13,160,149 11,966,375
Noocurrent Habllitles
Liabitity on Individual equity value 15 63,361,948 59,763,466
Aggregate reserve for trust labiity 15 29,275,505 13,780,311
Retirement benefit abligation 19 588,531 626,139
Total noncurrent liabilities 93,245,981 54,170,016
~Total labilities 106,406,130 96,136,39N
FUND BALANCE
“0 1 Restricted balance 17 22,977,037 20,304,408
Unrestricted batance ” 35,706,579 22,225,190
Total mu‘m- 58,683,616 42,529,598
3 |
7 Total tabitities and fund balance P165,089,746 P138,665,989

(The notes on pages 5 to 50 are integral part of these financlol statements. )




KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC.
(@ Non-stock, Not-for-profit Association)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Note 2016 2015

Revenue 20 739,770,564 36,114,673
Beneflt exponses
Allocation for Uability on individual equity (12,394,537) {11,583,340)
Benefit/claims expenses - BLIP 16,951,019) {5,693,005)
Benefit/claims expenses - Equity value (3,648,112) (3,708,6%6)
Benefit/claims expenses « CLIP (1,390,000) (1,208,419)
Collection fees {1,109,150) (1,037,138}
Other expenses for members (866,724) {601,263)
Increase/decreass In aggregate reserve for trust lability (657,867) (543,277)
Increase/decrease in reserve for basic contingent fund {253,545) 3,971
Increase/decrease in liability on individual equity 8,995,303 -
Increase/decrease In reserve for optional benefit 15,262 {165,435)

Total banefit expense (18,260, 389) (24,544, 544)
Revenue before operating expense 21,510,175 11,570,129
Operating expenses 1 (7,963,418} {6,658,438)
Revenue from operations 13,546,757 4,911,691
Finance Income 46,10 4,420,930 4,102,617
Net revenue 17,967,687 9,014,308
Other comprehesive income
itern thot will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Unrealized gain (lass) on AFS financial assets 9 (222,105) 436,759

Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit obligation 19 78,460 [260,303)
Other comprehesive income (loss) for the year (143,645) 176,456
Total comprehensive income P17,824,042 P9,190,764

(The notes on pages 5 to 50 are integral part of theze financlal statements. )
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KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC.
(o Non-stock, Not-for-profit Associatfon)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Note 2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Net raverue P17,967,687 P9,014,308
Adjustments for;
Deprectation 12,21 327,595 342,739
Retirement benefit cost 19,21 201,048 185,221
Gain on saie of equipments 12 3,609) ~
Finance ncome 4,6,10 (4,420,930) (4,102,617)
Operating profit before working capital changes 14,071,791 5,439 651
{ncrease) decrease n:
Recelvables (578,824) 2,346,073
Other current assets (167,155) (42,763)
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables 617,789 (283,353)
Basic contingent benefit reserve 36,006 534
Optional benefit reserve (15,262) 165,435
Claims payable on basic contingent benefit 218,098 1,436
Cash generated from operations 14,182,443 7,629,013
Finance income recetved 3,918,462 4,102,617
Het cash provided by operating activities 18,100,905 11,731,630
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of held-to-maturity investment 10 (11,000,000)
Advances to contractor " (1,219,366) -
Acquisition of property and equipment 12 (261,908) (172,199}
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 12 6,053 -
Increase in other noncurrent assets (253,408) -
Net cash used In Investing activities (12,728,627) (172,199)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of retirement Liability 19 (160,296) (291,688)
Increase in iability on individual equity value 3,386,792 11,583,340
Increase in aggregate reserve for trust liability 6,064,024 5,369,622
Decrease in fund batance (1,670,024) (1,634,078)
Net cash provided by financing activities 7,620,496 15,025,196
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents 12,992,774 26,584,627
Cash and cesh equivalents
Janvary 1 L] 43,960,526 17,375,899
Decamber 31 6 56,953,300 743,960,526

(The notes on pages 5 to 50 are Integrat part of these financial statements. )




KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(a Nan-stock, Not-for-profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1- GENERAL INFORMATION

Kasagana-ka Mutual Benefit Association Inc. (the Association) was organized and incorporated
under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines and registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on June 29, 2006 per SEC Registration Number CN200610153, The Association is
primarily engaged to promote the welfare of the poor; to extend financial assistance to its
members in the form of death benefit, medical subsidy, pension and loan redemption assistance;
and to ensure continued access to benefits and resources by actively involving the members in the
direct management of the Assocfation that will include fmplementation of policies and procedures
geared towards sustainability and improved services.

The Assoclation s a nonstock, nonprofit entity that no part of the income, which the Association
may obtain as an incident to its operations, shall be distributed as dividends to its members,
trustees or officers subject to the provisions of the Corporation Code on dissolution. Any profit
obtained by the Association as a result of its operations, whenever necessary or proper shall be
used for the furtherance of its purpose.

The Association’s registered office address, which is also its principal place of business, is located
at #5 Don Francisco St., Don Enrique Heights Commonwealth Avenue, Brgy. Holy Spirit, Quezon
City.

1.1 Approval of financial statements

The financial statements of the Association have been approved and authorized for issuance by the
Board of Trustees (BOT) on April 10, 2017. The Association’s General Manager, Silvida Antiquera
was authorized by the BOT to sign for and on behalf of the BOT, to approve and cause the
submission of the audited financial statements,

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Association’s financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, and
adopted by SEC,

The SEC issued a notice on October 11, 2010 allowing SMEs exemption from the mandatory
adoption of PFRS For SMEs, Based on the exception criteria that it is 2 holder of a secondary license
issued by regulatory agencies, the Association elected to adopt the PFRS framework.




Basis of measurement and presentation

The Association’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets which have been measured at fair value.

Functional curcency

The financial statements are prepared in Philippine Peso (P), which is the Association's functional
and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise
stated.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Association’s management to exercise judgment
in applying the Association’s accounting policles. The areas where significant judgments and
estimates have been made in preparing the Assocfation’s financial statements and their effects are
disclosed In Note 3.

and amen ve before or on 016

Amendments to PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in
Other Entities and PAS 28 Investments in Assoclates and Joint ventures: The amendments clarify
a number of aspects of PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 2B In relation to the investment entities
cansolidation exception:

(1) How Intermediate parent entities should apply the general scope exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements provided by PFRS 10.4, when the ultimate
parent is an investment entity.

The amendments clarify that so long as the entity's ultimate (or intermediate) parent
produces financial statements that are in compliance with PFRS 10 (including an
investment entity that accounts for its interests in all of its subsidiaries at fair value rather
than consolidating them), the exemption is available to the intermediate parent entity
from presenting its own consolidated financial statements (so long as the other criteria of
PFRS 10.4(a) have been met).

) How an investment entity parent should account for a subsidiary that provides services
related to its investment activities and is also itself an investment entity

The amendments clarify that an investment entity parent consolidates a subsidiary only
when:

- The subsidiary is not itself an investment entity, and

- The subsidiary's main purpose is to provide services that relate to the investment entity's
investment activities,

(iif)  How PFRS 12 should be applied to an investment entity
The amendments clarify that an investment entity that prepares financial statements in
which all of its subsidiaries are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is
required to present the disclosures relating to investment entities as required by PFRS 12.

(Iv) How a non-investment entity should account for its Interests in any associates or Joint
ventures that are investment entities




The amendments clarify that for an entity that is not itself an investment entity but has an
interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, the noninvestment
entity may, when applying the equity method, retain the fair value measurement applied
by the investment entity associate or joint venture to account for its own interests in its
subsidiaries.

Amendments to PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The amendments require an entity to apply all of
the principles of PFRS 3 Business Combinations when it acquires an interest in a joint operation
that constitutes a business as defined by PFRS 3.

The amendment also includes two new lllustrative Examples:

- Example 7: Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations in which the activity
constitutes a business

- Example 8: Contributing the right to use know-how to a joint operation in which the activity
constitutes a business.

A consequential amendment to PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards has also been made, to clarify that the exemption from applying PFRS 3 to past business
combinations upon adoption of PFRS also applies to past acquisitions of Interests in joint operations
in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business.

PFRS 14 regulatory Deferral Accounts: PFRS 14 is an interim standard, pending the outcome of
the PASE’s more comprebensive Rate-regulated Activities project, which was re-opened in
September 2012,

In many countries, industry sectors (including utilities such as gas, electricity and water) are
subject to rate regulation where governments regulate the supply and pricing. This can have a
significant effect on the amount and timing of an entity’s revenue. Some national GAAPs require
entities, that operate in industry sectors subject to rate regulation, to recognize associated assets
and labilities.

The scope of PFRS 14 Is narrow, with this extending to cover only those entities that:

- Are first-time adopters of PFRS

- Conduct rate regulated activities

+ Recognize associated assets and/or liabilities in accordance with their current national GAAP,

Entities within the scope of PFRS 14 would be afforded an option to apply their previous local GAAP
accounting policies for the recognition, measurement and impairment of assets and liabilities
arising from rate regulation, which would be termed regutatory deferral account balances.

Any regulatory deferral account balances, and their associated effect on profit or loss, would be
recognized and presented separately from other items in the primary financial statements. As a
result, for those entities that elect to adopt PFRS 14, all other line items and subtotals would
exclude the effects of regulatory deferral accounts, meaning that they would be comparable with
other entities that report in accordance with PFRS but do not apply PFRS 14.

Application guidance is included in PFRS 14 in respect of other PFRSs that would need to be
considered alongside the previous national GAAP accounting requirements in order for these
regulatory deferral accounts to be accounted for appropriately in an entity's PFRS financial
statements, Including:

- PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Perfod

- PAS 12 Income Taxes

- PAS 28 Investments In Associates and Joint Ventures

- PAS 33 Eamings per Share

- PAS 36 Impairment of Assets




- PFRS 3 Business Combinations

- PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
- PFRS 10 Consotidated Financial Statements

- PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities.

Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The amendments made to PAS 1

include:

- Materiality: Aggregation or disaggregation should not chscure useful information. Materiality
applies to each of the primary financial statements, the notes and each specific disclosure
required by PFRSs.

- Line Items in primary financial statements: Additional guidance for the line Items required to
be presented in primary statements, in particular that it may be appropriate for these to be
disaggregated, and new requirements regarding the use of subtotals.

- Notes to the financial statements: Determination of the order of the notes should include
consideration of understandability and comparability of financial statements, It has been
clarified that the order listed in PAS 1.114(c) is illustrative only.

~  Accounting policies: Remaval of the examples in PAS 1.120 in respect of income taxes and
foreign exchange gains and losses.

In addition, the following amendments to PAS 1 were made which arose from a submission received

by the PFRS Interpretations Committee:

- Equity accounted investments: An entity's share of other comprehensive income will be split
between those ftems that will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in
aggregate as single line items within those two groups.

Amendments to PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 38 Intangible Assets

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 16 has been amended to prohibit the use of revenue-based methods of depreciation for items
of property, plant and equipment. This is because the revenue generated by an activity that
includes the use of an item of property, plant and equipment generally reflects factors other than
the consumption of the economic benefits of the item, such as:

- Other Inputs and processes

- Selling activities and changes in sales

- Volumes and prices, and

- Inflation.

Guidance on depreciation has been expanded to state that expected future reductions in the
selling price of items produced by an item of property, plant and equipment could Indicate
technical or commercial obsolescence (and therefore a reduction In the economic benefits
embodied in the {tem), rather than a change in the depreciable amount or period of the item.

PAS 38 has been amended to incorporate a rebuttable presumption that Amortization based on
revenue is not appropriate, The presumption can be rebutted if either:

- The intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue; or

- I:re;‘v:net: and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
co ted.

Amendments to PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 41 Agriculture: The
amendments extend the scope of PAS 16 to include bearer plants and define a bearer plant as a
living plant that:

- Is used in the production process of agricultural produce,

- Is expected to bear produce for more than one period; and

« Has a remote likelthood of being sold (except Incidental scrap sales),



The changes made result in bearer plants being accounted for in accordance with PAS 16 using
either:

- The cost model, or

- The revaluation model.

As such, bearer plants are no longer within the scope of PAS 41, However, the agricultural produce
of bearer plants remains within the scope of PAS 41,

The amendments include the following transitional reliefs for the purposes of first time

application:

- Deemed cost exemption - Entities are allowed to use the fair value of the bearer plants at the
beginning of the earliest period presented as deemed cost for PAS 16 purposes.

- Disclosures - Quantitative information describing the effect of the first time application as
required by PAS 8.28(f) is not required for the current reporting period, but is required for
each prior period presented.

Amendments to PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements: The amendments include the introduction
of an option for an entity to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, and
associates using the equity method in its separate financial statements. The accounting approach
that is selected is required to be applied for each category of investment,

Before the amendments, an entity accounted for its Investments iIn subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associates either at cost or in accordance with PFRS 9 Financial Instruments {or PAS 39 Financial
instruments: Recagnition and Measurement for those entities that have yet to adopted PFRS 9).
The option to present its investments using the equity method result in the presentation of a share
of profit or loss, and other comprehensive income, of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
with a correspanding adjustment to the carrying amount of the equity accounted investment in the
statement of financial position. Any dividends received are deducted from the carrying amount of
the equity accounted investment, and are not recorded as income In profit or loss.

A consequential amendment was also made to PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures, to avold a potential conflict with PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements for partial
sell downs.

Amendments to PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the
interim financial report’: PAS 34 requires certain disclosures to be presented in the notes to the
interim financial report, unless they are presented elsewhere in the interim financial report (such
as a front end management report),

If the disclosures are presented 'elsewhere' in the interim financial report, such as in the

ent commentary or the risk report of an entity, a cross reference must be made from the
notes to the interim financial statements to where the disclosures have been made. Further, if the
disclosures are contained in a separate document from the interim report, that document needs to
be available on the same terms and at the same time as the interim report itself.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012 - 2014 Cycle)

PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in methods of
disposal; The amendment clarifies that the reclassification of an asset or disposal group from being
held for sale to being held for distribution to owners, or vice versa is considered to be a
continuation of the ariginal plan of disposal. Upon reclassification, the classification, presentation
and measurement requirements of PFRS 5 are applied. If an asset ceases to be classified as held for
distribution to awners, the requirements of PFRS 5 for assets that cease to be classified as held for

sale apply.



PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendments to PFRS 7 dealt with two aspects:
servicing of contracts and the applicability in interim financial statements of the offsetting
amendments made to PFRS 7 in December 2011.

(i) Servicing contracts

The PASB clarified the circumstances in which an entity has continuing involvement from
the servicing of a transferred asset. Continuing Involvement exists if the servicer has a
future interest in the performance of the transferred financial asset. Examples of situations
where continuing involvement exist are where a transferor's servicing fee is:

- A variable fee which is dependent on the amount of the transferred asset that is
ultimately recovered; or

- A fixed fee that may not be paid in full because of non-performance of the transferred
financial asset.

The amendment is required to be applied retrospectively in accordance with PAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. However, the amendment
does not need to be applied for any period beginning before the annual period in which the
entity first applies the amendments, A consequential amendment has been made to PFRS 1
First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, in order that the same
transitional provision applies to first time adopters.

() Applicability of offsetting in condensed interim financial statements

A further amendment to PFRS 7 has clarified that the application of the amendment
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to PFRS 7) issued in
December 2011 is not explicitly required for all Interim periods. However, It Is noted that
in some cases these disclosures may need to be included In condensed interim financial
statements in order to comply with PAS 34,

PAS 19 Employee benefits - Discount rate - regional market issue: The guidance in PAS 19 has
been clarified and requires that high quality corporate bonds used to determine the discount rate
for the accounting of employee benefits need to be denominated in the same currency as the
related benefits that will be paid to the employee.

Entities are required to apply the amendment from the earliest comparative period presented in
the financial statements, with initial adjustments being recognized in retained eamings at the
beginning of that period.

amendments effective after 20

PFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014): In July 2014 the PASB published PFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (2014) which Incorporated the final requirements on-all three phases of the financial
instruments projects - classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. The
original version of PFRS 9, issued in 2009, introduced new criteria for the classification and
measurement of financial assets to be measured at amortised cost. In order to qualify for
amortised cost measurement, a two stage test is applied. Firstly, the entity's business model must
be to collect the contractual cash flows from the asset, rather than selling it to realise its fair
value. Secondly, the asset must have contractual cash flows which are comprised solely of the
principal amount due plus interest on the principal amount outstanding (which is only time value
plus a margin for credit risk), often referred to as ‘SPPI’. Financial assets that pass those two tests
are measured at amortised cost, with all others being measured at falr value, The criteria are
applied to the assets as a whole, with the previous guidance in PAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement far embedded derivatives no longer applying to financial assets.
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PFRS 9 (2014) introduces amendments to the previously finalised classification and measurement
requirements for financial assets. A third measurement category has also been added for debt
instruments - FVTOCL. This new measurement category applies to debt instruments that meet the
Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) contractual cash flow characteristics test and
where the entity is holding the debt Instrument to both collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets. Additional application guidance was included to clarify the requirements
for contractual cash flows of a financial asset to be regarded as giving rise to payments that are
SPPI.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities were first added to PFRS 9
In 2010 and have been carried forward from PAS 39 largely unchanged, Including a continuation of
the requirement to separate embedded derivatives. However a significant change is that, if a
financial Uability is designated (under the option available in PFRS 9) as at fair value through profit
or lass, changes in the fair value of that financial liability that are attributable to changes in the
entity's own credit risk will typically be recorded in Other Comprehensive Income Instead of profit
or loss. This change has been made in order to prevent a deterioration in an entity’s financial
position {and hence credit status) resulting in gains being reported in profit or loss.

The existing guidance for derecognition of financial assets and liabilities has been carried forward
from PAS 39 unchanged, with some improvements to disclosure requirements being added to PFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures,

For the Impairment of financial assets, a new ‘expected loss’ model in PFRS 9 (2014) replaces the
“ncurred loss’ model in PAS 39, The new impairment requirements will affect all entities with
financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss and are likely to bring
significant changes. Provisions for trade receivables will need to be determined using a forward
looking approach and, while for some entities the provisions may be relatively straightforward to
calculate, the approach fs significantly different and more complex in comparison ta the Incurred
loss model, and new systems and processes may well be needed. For financial institutions the
changes are likely to be very significant and require major changes to intermnal systems and
processes in order to capture the required Information.

The hedge accounting requirements of PFRS 9 are also significantly different from those set out in
PAS 39, and are designed to align hedge accounting more closely with entities® risk management
processes. In practice, it will be significantly more straightforward to apply hedge accounting
under the new model and we expect that entitles that have previously decided not to hedge
account may do so in future.

The effective date of the fully completed version of PFRS 9 (2014) is for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 with retrospective application. Early application is permitted. If an entity's
date of initial application (the start of the period in which PFRS 9 is adopted) is before 1 February
2015, there is a choice of which version of PFRS 9 to adopt (2009, 2010, 2013 or 2014), The 2009
version covered the classification and measurement of financial assets only, the 2010 version added
the classification and measurement of financial tabilities and derecognition, and the 2013 version
added hedge accounting.

In addition, there is an option to early adopt the ‘own credit' provisions for financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) under the fair value option without any of the
other requirements of PFRS 9, This option will remain available untit 1 January 2018.

PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: In May 2014, the PASB published PFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, The new Standard, which is fully converged with
equivatent new US GAAP guidance fssued at the same time, contains comprehensive guldance for
accounting for revenue and will replace existing requirements which are currently set out in two
avictinn srandarde (PAS 18 Revenue and PAS 11 Construction Contracts) and related interpretations

(IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Esta
) te
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 Z 2
ety Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving
PFRS 15 contains significantly more prescriptive and precise requirements in comparison with

existing PFRS. In future, revenue will be n i
s ecognised from the application of the following five
1. ldentify the contract




(IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate,
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving
Advertising Services),

PFRS 15 contains significantly more prescriptive and precise requirements in companson with
existing PFRS. In future, revenue will be recognised from the application of the following five
steps:

1. Identify the contract

2. |dentify the performance obligation(s)

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation

5. Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied,

The iIntroduction of the new requirements means that for many entities the timing and profile of
revenue recognition will change, In some areas the changes will be very significant and will require
careful planning, Including for commercial effects (such as compliance with bank covenants,
performance based remuneration and business combinations).

PFRS 15 is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early application
permitted.

In May 2015 the PASB published Exposure Draft £0/2015/2 Effective Date of PFRS 15 which
proposes to defer the effective date of PFRS 15 by one year to 1 January 2018, The reason for
deferring the effective date is that additional changes to PFRS 15 will be proposed in the near
future that stem from the discussions at the PASB and FASB Joint Transition Resource Group for
Revenue Recognition (TRG). The comment deadline ended on 3 July 2015,

At its meeting on 22 July 2015, the PASB decided to defer the effective date of PFRS 15 Revenus
from Contracts with Customers to periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

In addition the change will keep the effective date aligned with the equivalent US GAAP guidance.
The FASB published Accounting Standards Update 2014-09 (ASU) on 29 April 2015, which

to defer the effective date of the new revenue standard by one year, At its meeting on 9 July 2015,
the FASB affirmed its proposal to defer the effective date, the final ASU is expected to be
published by the end of the third quarter of 2015.

PFRS 16 Leases. PFRS 16 specifies how an PFRS reporter will recognize, measure, present and
disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the
underlying asset has a low value, Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with
PFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, PAS 17,
PFRS 16 was Issued In January 2016 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019.

2.2 Current versus noncurrent classification

The Association presents assets and Uabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it Is:

Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as noncurrent, A liability Is current when:
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It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpese of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
manths after the reporting period

The Association classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
2.3 Fair value measurement

The Association measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Also, fair
values of financial instruments measured at amortized cost are disclosed in Note 4.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement {s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Assaciation,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which falr value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

« Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitles

« Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement s directly or indirectly observable

« Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Association determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Association has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lfability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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2.4 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financiat liabitity or equity instrument of another entity.

{. Financial assets
initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair vaive through profit
or loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held to maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Association commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described
below;

(a) Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVPL.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined
by PAS 39. Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes In fair value presented as finance costs (negative net changes in fair value) or
finance income (positive net changes in fair value) in the statement of comprehensive Income.

The Association has financial assets at FVPL as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (Notes 4 and 9).
(b) Loans and receivables

This category is the most relevant to the Association, Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amaortization is included in finance income in the statement of comprehensive income.
The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in
finance costs for loans and in general and administrative expenses for receivables.

The category generally applies to cash and cash equivalents and receivables in the statement of
financial position (Note 4).
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(c) HTM Investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as HTM when the Association has the positive intention and ability to hold them to
maturity. After initlal measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using the
EIR, less Impairment, Amartized cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EiR. The EIR amortization is
included as finance fncome In the statement of comprehensive Income. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in finance costs. '

The Association has HTM investments as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (Note 4).
(d) AFS investments

AFS financial investments include equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at FVPL,
Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and that may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes In the
market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized as other comprehensive income and credited in the AFS
reserve until the investment is derecognized, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss is
recognized in other operating income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumutative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to the statement of comprehensive income in
finance costs. Interest earned while holding AFS financial investments is reported as finance
income using the EIR method,

The Association evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the
near term is still appropriate, When, in rare circumstances, the Association is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management's intention to do so significantly changes
in the foreseeable future, the Association may elect to reclassify these financial assets if the
Association has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity,

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that has
been recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortized cost and the maturity amount is also
amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR, If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of
comprehensive income,

The Association has AFS financial assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (Note 4).
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) the Association has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (i) the Association has transferred substantially all the
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risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Association has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Association has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Association continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Association’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Association also recognizes an associated lability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Association has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of guarantee over transferred asset fs measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Association coutd be required to pay.

il. Impairment of financial assets

The Association assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists If one or more
events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated, Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there Is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in Notes 3 and 5.
(@) Financial assets corried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Association first assesses whether impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financtal
assets that are not individually significant. If the Association determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impalrment and
for which an impairment loss fs, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The carrying amount of any Impalrment loss identified is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, Interest income (recorded as finance
income in the statement of comprehensive income) continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans together with the assaciated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized or has been transferred to the Association. If, In a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account,
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(b) Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence of an impalrment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or of a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity Instrument, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset.

(c) AFS investments

For AFS financial investments, the Association assesses at each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired,

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the perfod In which the fair
value has been below its original cost, When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previousty recegnized in the statement of comprehensive
fncome - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or
loss; Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income,

The determination of what 1s “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the Association evaluates among other factors the duration or extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than Its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classiffed as AFS, the Impalrment Is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost, However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income,

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset,
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. If, in a subsequent
year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impalrment loss was recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income, the impalrment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income,

iii, Financial tiabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial abilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL and other
financial ltabilities. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Association’s financial liabilities comprise other financial Uabilities, which include accrued
axpenses and other payables and policy and contract claims payable (Note 4),
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Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:
(a) Financial llabilities at FYPL

Financial Uabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial Uabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL,

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are Incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Association that are not designated as hedging Instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by PAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as heid for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of comprehensive
fncome.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FYPL are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriz in PAS 39 are satisfied.

The Association does not have any liabilities held for trading nor has it designated any financial
liability as being at FYPL.

(b) Other financial liabilities

This is the category most relevant to the Association. After initial recognition, other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the Wabllities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs
in the statement of comprehensive income. L

This category generally applies trade and other payables, aggregate reserves and claims payable on
basic contingent benefit (Notes 14, 15 and 16).

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability s replaced by another from the same
tender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

iv. Classification of financial instruments between debt and equity
Financial instruments are classified as liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability is reported as expense of income,
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v. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.5 Insurance contracts
Product classification

Insurance contracts under which the Association (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance
risk from another party (the policy holders) by agreeing to compensate the policy holders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policy holder. As a
general guideline, the Association determines whether it has significant finsurance risk, by
comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur, Insurance
contracts can also transfer financial risks.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains as insurance contract for
the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during the period,
unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

Benefits and claims

Claims consist of benefits and claims paid to policyholders, which Include excess gross benefit
claims for unit-link Insurance contract. Death claims, surrenders and non life Insurance claims are
recorded on the basis of notifications received. Maturities are recorded when due.

Liability adequacy tests

At each financial reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of
the contract liabilities net of reinsurance assets. In performing these tests, current best estimates
of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as
investment income from assets backing such liabilities are used. Any deficiency is immediately
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and In banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months
or less from dates of placements and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.7 Recelvables

Receivables are recognized initially at the transaction price and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Association will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the recelvables.

Other receivables are also measured at initial recognition at transaction price. They are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.
Interest Income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial. Bad debts are written off when
identified.
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2.8 Other current assets

Prepayments: represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash., Prepayments are
initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are
charged to statement of comprehensive income as they are consumed In operations or expire with
the passage of time.

Prepayments are classified in the statement of financial position as current assets when the cost of
goods or services related to the prepayment are expected to be incurred within one year or the
Association’s normal operating cycle, whichever s longer. Otherwise, prepayments are classified as
noncurrent assets.

Other current assets are recognized when the Association expects to receive future economic
benefit from them and the amount can be measured reliably, Other assets are classified in the
statement of financial position as current assets when the cost of goods or services related to the
assets are expected to be incurred within one year or the Association's normal operating cycle,
whichever is longer. Otherwise, other assets are classified as noncurrent assets.

2.9 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are initially measured at cost. At the end of each reporting period, items
of property and equipment are measured at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset and the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of
dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability Is recognized within provisions,

Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already been
recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits, In excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will
flow to the Association. All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as expense in the period
in which those are incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of other assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Below is the estimated useful lives used
for the depreciation of property and equipment:

Property classification Estimated useful life
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Office improvement 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful fife of the office improvements,

Depreciation of these assets, on the same basls as other property assets, commences at the time
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periadically to
ensure that the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.




When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset, determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, Is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive Income,

2.10 Intangible Asset

Computer software s stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Assocfation’s non-financial assets such as property and equipment are
reviewed at each financial reporting date to determine whether there is any Indication of
{mpatrment or an impairment loss previousty recognized no longer exists or may have decreased. If
any such Indication exists, the Association makes a formal estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset or its cash generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less
costs to sell and Its value in use. The fair value less casts to sell is the amount obtainable from the
sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, For an asset
that does not generate cash flows independent of those from other assets; the recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds Its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and an
impairment loss 15 recognized fn the statement of comprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Reversals of impairment are recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income,

2.12 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognized in the period n which the money or services are received or when a
legally enforceable claim against the Company is established or when the corresponding assets and
expenses are recognized/ incurred.

Accrued expenses and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accrued expenses and other payables
are classified as current labilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer); otherwise, they are presented as noncurrent liabilities,
These are o‘feasured initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR meth

Accrued expenses are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied
but have not been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with supplier. It is necessary to estimate the
amount of accrued expenses, however, the uncertainty is generally much less than for provision.

Other payables pertain to government dues and remittances.
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Government dues and remittances include withholding Income taxes which represent taxes
retained by the Association for an item of income required to be remitted to the BIR within one (1)
month. The obligation of the Assaciation to deduct and withhold the taxes arises at the time the
fncome payment is paid or payable, or the income payment is accrued or recorded as an expense or
asset, whichever comes first. The term “payable” refers to the date the obligation becomes due,
demandable, or tegally enforceable.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method,

2.13 Liability for incurred policy benefit

A liability for incurred policy benefits relating to life insurance contracts in force Is accrued when
premium revenue is recognized.

The Association’s aggregate reserve for life policies, policy and contract claims payable,
applicant's deposit and other funds and premium deposit fund are computed annually based on the
approved valuation method by the Insurance Commission (IC) and certified to by an independent
actuary.

Liability odequacy test

The Association assesses at each reporting date whether Its recognized insurance liabilities are
adequate, using the current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that
assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of
the estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency shall be recognized in profit or loss.

The liability is derecognized when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled,
2.14 Basic contingent benefit reserves

Basic contingent benefit reserves represent the total actuarial reserve set-up by the Association
pertaining to the basic life benefit that is in force as at the end of the accounting period. It refers
to the amount of liability which the Association establishes for a certificate to meet the
contractual obligation as it falls due.

2.15 Liability on individual fund value

Upon termination of membership, a member who has been with the Assoclation at least three (3)
full years shall be entitled to an equity value equivalent to at least fifty percent (50%) of the total
weekly contributions collected from him.

The Association’s Board of Trustees shall set up each year sufficient reserves for the payment of
claims and other obligations in accordance with actuarial procedures approved by the Insurance
Commission. If the reserves become impaired, the Board of Trustees shall require all members’
equitable proportion of such indebtedness against the members and draw interest not exceeding
five percent (5%) per annum compounded annually.

Withdrawal from the funds of the Association, whether by check or any other instruments, is signed

by at least two (2) persons designated by the unanimous vote of the Association’s Board of
Trustees.
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2.16 Optional benefit reserve

Optionat benefit reserve represents the total actuarfal reserve set up by the Association pertaining
to the policies under optional benefit that is in force as at the end of the accounting period. It
refers to the amount of liability which the Association establishes for an optional policy to meet
the contractual obligation as it falls due.

2.17 Claims payable on basic contingent fund

Claims payable on basic contingent fund represents the sum of the individual claims on membership
certificates that are due and have already been approved for payment but, for one reason or
another, have not actually been paid. This includes check already issued to beneficiaries but not
yet released as of the end of the financial reporting period,

2,18 Retirement obligation

Pursuant to the provision of the Republic Act 7641, all companies are required to provide
retirement benefits to all their employees, except when the Association has less than 10
employees. This employment benefit plan is a defined benefit plan because the entity's obligation
is to provide specific level of benefit for every year of services.

{a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan 15 a pension plan under which the Association pays fixed
contributions Into a separate entity, The Association has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior perfods. A defined benefit plan
is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation,

The liability or asset recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined
benefit pension plans s the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually using projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation i determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of government bonds that are denominated in the currency In which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of all related pension obligations.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

» Service cost

* Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
* Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense In the statement of income. Past service costs
are recognized when plan amendment or curtallment occurs. These amounts are calculated
periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit lability or asset is the change during the peried in the

net defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined
by applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit lability or
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asset. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or
income in the statement of income.

Remeasurements comprising actuanal gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity In other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

The cumulative gains or losses arising from the remeasurements are shown as a separate line
item in the statement of financial position as “remeasurement of retirement benefits
abligation".

{b) Profit-sharing and bonuses

The Association recognizes a liability and expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Association’s shareholders
after certain adjustments, The Association recognizes a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.19 Fund balance

Fund balance refers to the residual interest in the assets of the Assoclation after deducting all its
liabilities. This represents the accumulated earnings of the Association reduced by whatever losses
the Assaciation may incur during a certain accounting period.

2.20 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Association has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event; (b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
Uability. Where discounting is used, the Increase In the provision due to the passage of time s
recognized as finance cost, When the Association expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain
and its amount is estimable. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of
comprehensive income, net of any reimbursement.

Contingent tiabilities are not recognized in the Association's financial statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,

Contingent assets are not recognized in the Association’s financial statements but disclosed in the
notes to Association's financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue s recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Association and the revenue can be reliably measured, The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognized:

The funds of the Association are derived from membership fees, periodic dues, weekly
contributions collected from members and income from interest on savings and investments.
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Premiums on policies Issued directly by the Association are recognized on the effective date of the
title policy,

Contribution and fees

Members are charged a one-time thirty pesos (P30.00) application fee for KDClI members and one
hundred pesos (P100) for associate members in order to cover the expenses incurred In processing
their application, This fee is neither refundable nor included in determining the member's
accumulated and refundable contributions. Membership fees are recognized upon the admission of
a qualifiad member to the Association.

Members are charged twenty pesos (P20.00) contribution per week for the payment of death and
total disability of a member, and death of any member's legal spouse, or any of the members'
legitimate and/or legally adopted children in accordance with the Association's table of Life
Insurance Benefits. Twenty percent (20%) of the weekly contribution from Its members is deducted
as General Administrative Funds and any balance is used for payment of mutual benefits.

The contribution may be adjusted by the Board of Trustees as may be necessary to maintain the
funds of the Association at a level adequate to meets its benefit obligations or commitments under
the pain,

Finance income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income 1s recorded using the EIR
which is the rate that exactly discounted the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where approprate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or llability. Interest income is Included In “Finance Income”
in the statement comprehensive of income,

Other income
Income from other sources Is recognized when earned.
2.22 Benefit and other expense recognition

Benefit and other expenses are recognized In the statement of comprehensive Income when
decrease in future economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a lability
has arisen that can be measured reliably. Expenses are recognized: on the basis of a direct
association between the costs incurred and the eaming of specific items of income; on the basis of
systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over
several accounting periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly
determined; or immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when,
and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition
in the statement of financial position as an asset.

2.23 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the

risks and rewards of awnership to the lessee, All other leases are classified as operating leases. The
Company does not have any leases under finance lease.
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Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of
the lease. The corresponding Uability to the lessor is Included In the company's statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achleve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly against income, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalized In accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing
costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except when ancther systematic basis Is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognized expenses In the penod in which they are Incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognized as a liability, The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except when another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

2.24 Related parties

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party In making financlal and operating decisions, Individuals,
associates or companies that directly or indirectly control or are controlled by or under common
control with the Association are considered related parties. The key management personnel of the
Association are also considered to be related parties,

2.25 Income taxes

The Assoclation is exempted from Income tax under Section 30 (c) of the National Intermal Revenue
Code as a non-stock association organized and operated exclusively for charitable and cultural
purposes no part of its net income or asset shall belong to or inure to the benefit of any member,
organizer, officer or any specific person. Interest earned from the placement of Association funds
are, however, subject to final tax. The interest income shown in the financial statement s net of
final tax.

2.26 Events after the financial reporting date

Post year-end events up to the date the financial statements were authorized for issuance that
provide additional information about the Association's position at financial reporting date
{adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, when material.

NOTE 3 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the Association's

management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements.
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The estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical experiences and other various
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances including expectations of
related future events, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewed and evaluated on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised {f
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods,

3.1 Judgments

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.

Determination of functional currency

The Association has determined that its functional currency is Philippine Peso. The determination
of functional currency was based on the primary economic environment in which the Association

generates and expends cash,
Classification of financial instruments

The Association classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as a
financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual agreement and the guidelines set by PAS 39 on the definitions of a financial asset, a
financial lfability or equity. In addition, the Association also determines and evaluates its intention
and ability to keep the investments until its maturity date.

The substance of a financial Instrument, rather than Its legal form, and the management's
intention and ability to hold the financial instrument to maturity generally governs its classification
in the statement of financial position,

The classification of financial assets and liabilities is presented In Note 4.

Determination of fair value of financial instruments

The Association determines significant compaonents of fair value measurement using verifiable
objective evidence (i.e,, foreign exchange rates, Interest rates, and volatility rates), timing and
the amount of changes in fair value would differ If the Association utilized a different valuation
methodology. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets and financlal liabilities would
affect profit and loss and equity.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to
P163,107,539 and P138,002,172 and P105,811,687 and P95,508,111 respectively, as disclosed in
Note 4.

Estimates and assumptions

Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment

The Association reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based on

the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. It is possible that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates. A reduction in the
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estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded depreciation expense
and decrease the related asset accounts. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are
discussed in Note 2.9 to the financlal statements, which showed no changes in 2016 and 2015,

The Association has entered into leases with various lessors. Based on the evaluation of the terms
and conditicns of the arrangements, all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the
properties remain with the lessor. Accordingly, the Assoclation accounted for the leases as
operating leases,

Impairment of financial assets

The Association assesses impairment on financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of financial asset may not be recoverable. The
determination of impairment losses for financial assets requires material estimates, including the
amount and timing of expected recoverable future cash flows. These estimates may change
significantly from time to time, depending on available information.

Management believes that the carrying amounts of financial assets approximate their recoverable
amounts.

Impairment of nan-financial assets

The Association assesses at the end of each reporting date whether there is an Indication that the
carrying amounts of all non-financial assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Association makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. At the end of each reporting date, the Association assesses whether
there |s any Indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount fs estimated.

Management has reviewed the carrying values of the Association’s non-financial assets as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 for impairment. Based on the management's assessment, there were
no indications that the non-financial assets were impalired, thus no impairment loss was recognized
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Estimation of liability for retirement benefits

The determination of the Association's obligation and cost of pension and other pension benefits Is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts
Those assumptions are described in Note 2 and include, among others, discount rate and salary
increase rate.

In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions used are accumulated and
amortized over future period and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded
obligation in such future perfods.

Based on the actuarial valuation, the pension liability amounted to P588,531 and P626,239 as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (Note 19).




NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following table sets forth the carrying value of financial instruments held by category:

2016 5
Carrying Carrying
Values Fair Values Values Fair Values
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (Note &) P56,951,300 P56,953,300 P43,960,526 P43,960,526
Receivables (Note 7) 3,828,671 3,828,671 2,747,379 1,747,379
Rental deposit (Note 13) 90,945 90,945 - .
Other funds and depasit (Note 13) 162,461 162,461 -
Available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 9) 15,393,796 15,393,796 15,615,901 15,615,901
Held-to-maturfty (nvestments :
(Note 10) 86,678,366 86,678,366 75,678,366 75,678,366
P163,107,539  P163,107,539 P138,002,172 P138,002,172
Financial llabilities
Other financial liabliities:
Trade and other payables*
(Note 14) P941,909 P941,909 P327,901 P327,99
Liability on individual equity
value (Note 15) 67,304,401 67,304,401 63,917,609 63,917,609
te reserve for trust
liabitity - RF {Note 15) 36,130,189 36,130,189 30,066,165 30,066,165
Basic contingent benefit
reserve (Note 15) 200,509 200,509 164,503 164,503
Optional benefit reserve (Note 15) 748,406 748,406 763,668 763,668
Claims payable on basic contingent
benefit (Note 16) 486,273 486,273 268,175 268,175
P105,811,687 7105‘81 1‘687 m&,ﬂi $95,510,152
*except government liabilities

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, trade and other payables, liability
on individual equity value, aggregate reserve for trust lability, basic contingent benefit reserve
and claims payable on basic contingent benefit approximate its fair values due to the relatively
short-term maturities of the financial instruments.

Items of income, expense, galns or lusses recognized from financial instruments are as follows:

2016 2015
Finance income (Notes 6 and 10) P4,420,930 P4,102,617
Unrealized gain (loss) on change in fair value of
Available-for-sale (222,105) 436,759
P4,198,825 P4,539,376
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NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIE2S
General objectives, policies and processes

The BOT has overall responsibility for the determination of the Association's risk management
objectives and policies and, while retaining uitimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the
authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the
objectives and policies to the Association’s finance function. The BOT receives monthly reports
from the Association’s Finance Officer through which it reviews the effectiveness of the processes
put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and palicies it sets.

The overall cbjective of the BOT is to set polices that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without
unduly affecting the Association’s competitiveness and flexibility.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Association 15 exposed to a variety of financial risks, which result from its operating, Investing
and financing activities. The Assoctation’s principal financial instruments comprise of Cash and cash
equivalents, receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity investments, liability
on individual equity value, aggregate reserve for trust liability, basic contingent benefit reserve,
optional benefit reserve, claims payable on basic contingent benefit and accrued and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Association’s
operations, The Assoclation has various other financial assets and liabilities which arise directly
from operations,

Association policies and guidelines cover credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk, The objective of
financial risk management fs to contain, where appropriate, exposures in these financial risks to
limit any negative impact on the Association’s results and financial position. The Association
actively measures, monitors and manages its financial risk exposures by various functions pursuant
to the segregation of duties principles.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial Instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the Association’s exposure to impairment is not significant,

Member credit risk is managed by managing and analyzing the credit risk for each new member
before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Outstanding receivables
are regularly monitored. The credit quality of the Association's financlal assets that are neither
past due nor impaired is considered to be good qguality and expected to be collectible without
incurring any credit losses,

Credit risk from balances with banks (s managed by ensuring that the Association' deposit
arrangements are with reputable and financially sound counterparties.



The Association's exposure to credit risk arises from default of other counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts as follows:

2016 2015

Cash and cash equivalents* (Note §) P56,946,300 P43,953,526
Receivables (Note 7) 3,828,671 2,747,379
Other funds and deposit (Note 13) 162,461 -
Rental deposit (Note 13) 90,945 .
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 9) 15,393,796 15,615,901
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 10) 86,678,366 75,678,366

P163,100,539 P137,995,172

*excluding cash on hand

The following table provides an analysis of the age of the financial assets that are past due but not
impaired and those financlal assets that are individually determined to be impaired as at the end of
the reporting period:

December 31, 2016

Neither
Impalirad nor
past due Past due but not yet impaired
61to More
1to 60 90 91to than 120
Total Current days days 120 days Cays impaired
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash
equivalents (Note 6)  P56,946,300  P56,946,300 P P P- P L
Receivables (Note 7) 3,828,671 P2,343,667 1,146,011 52,364 286,629 - -
Rental depasit
(Note 13) 50,94% 90,945 - - - - -
Other funds and
deposit (Note 13) 162,461 162,461 - - - - -
Available-for-sale
financial assets
(Note §) 15,39),7%6 15,393,796 - - - - -
Held-to-masturity
{nvestments (Note 10) 85,678,366 86,678,366 - - - - -
P163,100,539  P161,615,535 71,146,011  P52,364 P286,629 P P-
Oecember 31, 2015
Nofther
Impatred nor
past due Past due but not yet impasred
91 10

106 61w 120 Nore than
Total Current days days days 120 days _Impaired

Loans and recetvables

Cash and cash equivatents

(Note &) P43,953,526 P43,953,526 P- P P P P-

Recetvables (Note7) 2,747,379 ,747,37% . . . - .
Available-for-sale financial

assets (Note 9) 15,615,901 15,615,901 - - - - -
Hedd-to-matunity

fnvestments (Note 10) 75,678,366 75,678,364 . . » - -

P94,041, 644 P94,041, 646 P P+ P P- P-
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The credit quality of the Association’s financial assets is evaluated using Internal credit rating.
Financial assets are considered as high grade if the counter parties are not expected to default in
settling their obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. These counter parties include
banks, related parties and members who pay on or before due date,

Credit quality per class of financial assets

The Association’s bases 1n grading its financial assets are as follows:

High grade - These are receivables which haye a high probability of collection {the counterparty
has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security on the recelvables are readily
enforceable),

Standard - These are recefvables where collections are probable due to the reputation and the
financial ability of the counterparty to pay but have been outstanding for a certain period of time.

Substandard - These are receivables that can be collected provided the Association makes
persistent effort to collect them.

The table below shows the credit quality by class of financial assets (gross of allowance for credit
losses) of the Association based on their historical experience with the carresponding third parties
as of December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016

Notther Past Due nor impaired
ard  Substandard Past Due bt
High Grace Grade Grade _ Unrated Not Impaired impaied Total
Loans and receivables
Canh and cash
equivalents (Note 6) P56,946,300 P- P P- P- P P56,946,300
Recelvables (Note 7) P2,343, 667 - - P~ 1,485,004 P P3.828,671
Rental depesit (Note 13) 90,945 - » - - - 90,5945
Other funds and deposit "
(Note 13) 162,451 - . - - . 162,461
Available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 9) 15,393,796 - . - - 15,393,796
Held-to-maturity
investments (Note 10) 86,678,366 - - - - - 86,678,366
P161,615,535 P L P- P1,485,004 P ms‘wo,m
2015
Neither Past Due nar impaired Past Due
Standard  Substandard But Not
_ High Grade Grade Grade Unrated Impalred  Impaired Total
Loans and receivebles
Cash and cash equivalents
{Note &) P43,953,526 - P, P P P~ P43,633,526
Recetvables (Note 7) 2,747,379 . - - . - 2,747,379
Available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 9) 15,615,901 . - - . . 15,615,501
Held-to-matursty
investments (Note 10} 75,678,366 - - - . -« 75,678,366

P94,041,646 P- Pr P p- P- PG4,041, 640
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Impalrment assessment

{mpairment losses are recognized based on the results of specific {individual) and collective
assessment of credit exposures. Impairment has taken place when there is a presence of known
difficulties in the payments of obligation by counterparties. This and other factors, either singly or
in tandem with other factors, constitute observable events or data that meet the definition of
objective evidence of impairment.

The Association applied specific (individual) assessment methodology in assessing and measuring
impairment.

Specific (individual) assessment

The Association determines the allowances appropriate for each Individually significant loan on an
individual basis, Items considered when determining amounts of atlowances include payment and
collection history, timing of expected cash flows and realizable value of collateral, if any.

The Association sets criteria for specific loan impairment testing and uses the discounted cash flow
method to compute for impatrment loss. Accounts subjected to specific Impairment and are found
to be impaired shall be excluded from the collective impairment computation.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Association will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as these fall due and lack of funding to finance its grawth and capital expenditures and working
capital requirements,

The Association's approach to manage fts liquidity profile are to ensure that adequate funding Is
available at all times; to meet commitments as these arise without incurring unnecessary costs;
and ta be able to access funding when needed.

The following summarizes the maturity profile of the Association’s non-derivative financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

December 31, 2016
Lessthan 3t012 15

On demand 3 months  months Years Total
Trade and other payables (Note 14) P941,909 P P- P- P941,909
Liability on individual equity
value (Note 15) 3,922,456 - - - 3,922,456
Aggregate reserve for trust
liability (Note 15) 6,854,684 - - - 6,854,684
Basic contingent benefit
reserve (Note 15) 200,509 - - - 200,509
Optional benefit reserve (Note 15) 748,406 - . - 748,406
Claims payable on basic
contingent benefit (Note 16) 486,273 - - - 486,273
P10,154,237 P- P- P P10,154,237
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December 31, 2015

Lessthan 3 to 12
Ondemand 3 months months 110 5 years Total
Trade and other payables (Note 14) P327,991 P- P- e P327.9%
Liability on individual aquity
value (Note 15) 4,154,143 - - - 4,154,143
te reserve for trust
Babitity (Note 13) 6,285,854 . - . 6,285,854
Baslc contingent benefit
reserve (Note 15) 164,503 . - . 164,503
Optional benefit reserve (Note 15) 763,668 . - - 763,668
Claims payable on basic
contingent benefit (Note 16) 268,175 - - - 268,175
P11,964,334 P p- P- P11,964,334
Market risks

Market risk refers to the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and other market prices will affect the Association’s Income or the value of its
holdings of financial statements, The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return,

The Association Is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in interest, There
has been no change to the Association's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk,

Interest rate risks

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial Instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk Is the risk that
the falr value of a financial Instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

Capital risk management

The pnmary objective of the Assoclation’s capital management s to ensure its ability to continue
as a going concern and that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to
suppart its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Assocfation’s BOT has the overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in proportion to risk,
Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the Association’s external environment
and the risks underlying the Association's business operations and industry.

The Association monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio, which is calculated as
total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is equivalent to total liabilities shown in the
statement of financial position. Total equity comprises all components of equity including share
capital and related earnings (deficit).
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2016 2015

Debt P106,406,130 P96,136,391
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) (56,953,300) (43,960,526)
Net Debt 49,452,830 52,175,865
Equity 58,683,616 42,529,598
Net debt to equity ratio 1:0.84 1:1.23

There were no changes in the Association’s approach to capital management during the year.
Margin of Solvency (MOS)

The Association is required to maintain at all times an MOS for life insurance business of P500,000
or P2.00 per thousand of the tatal amount of its insurance in force as of the preceding calendar
year on all policies, except term insurance, whichever is higher,

The MOS shall be the excess of the value of its admitted assets (as defined under the IC Code),
exclusive of fts paid-up capital, over the amount of its (iabilities, unearned premiums and
reinsurance reserves, As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association’'s MOS based on its
calculations amounted to P147,704,483 and P125,165,141, respectively. The final amount of the
MOS can be determined anly after the accounts of the Association have been examined by the IC
specifically as to admitted and non-admitted assets as defined under the same Code.

The surplus available for MOS for the Assoclation follows:

2016 2015

Admitted Assets P162,488,805 P137,486,895
Admitted Liabilities 106,406,130 96,136,391
Net worth P56,082,675 P41 ,Jﬁ.?’a

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the estimated non-admitted assets of the Association’s life
operations, as defined under the Code, which are included in the accompanying statements of
financial position follows:

2016 215
Software and system development P1,219,366 P-
Receivables 559,976 588,893
QOther current assets 340,429 173,275
Other noncurrent assets 253,406 -
Transportation equipment 134,899 283,290
Office furmniture and fixture 92,865 130,484
Office improvement - 3,152
Total non-admitted assets P2,600,941 1,179,004

If an insurance Association falled to meet the minimum required MOS, the IC is authorized to
suspend or revoke all certificates of authority granted to such companies, its officers and agents,
and no new business shall be done by and for such Association until its authority is restored by the
IC.
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Price risk

The Association’s price risk expasure at year-end relates to financial assets and liabilities whose
values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, principally, AFS financial assets. Such
investment securities are subject to the price risk due to changes in market values of Instruments
arising either from factors specific to individual {nstruments or their issuers or factors affecting all
Instruments traded in the market.

The Association’s investments are regulated under the pertinent provisions of Presidential Decree
Mo. 612, otherwise known as The Insurance Code of the Philippines. The Insurance Code generally
requires all Insurance companies to obtain prior approval of the IC for any and all of their
jnvestments. It further requires companies to submit to the IC a monthly report on all investments
made during the previous month, The IC reviews the investments and may suggest or require the
immediate sale or disposal of investments deemed too risky.

For equity investments, Section 200 of the Insurance Code further provides, among other things
that fnsurance companies may only invest in shares of Philippine corporations which have prior
three-year dividend payment record. Moreover, the same section limits exposure to any one
institution equal to 10% of an insurer’s total admitted assets.

The following table shows the equity impact of reasonable possible change in the fair values of the
Association’s investments as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (all other variables held constant),

respectively.

2016 2015
Effect of Total Effect of Total
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Volatility Income Volatility Income
AFS financial assets 1% 11,314 1% 11,478
-1% (11,314) -1% (11,478)

Guaranty fund

As a mutual benefit association, the IC also requires the Association to possess a guaranty fund of
5.00 million. This mintmum amount shall be maintained at all times and it must be increased by
an amount equivalent to 5% of the Association's gross premium collections until the guaranty fund
reaches 12.5% of the minimum paid up capital for domestic life insurance companies or P125.00
million. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015 the Association has a total of P19,975,538 and
P18,060,420 representing guaranty fund which is deposited with the IC.
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NOTE 6 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Cash on hand P7,000 P7,000
Cash in banks 20,707,715 28,768,430
Cash equivalents 36,238,585 15,185,096
P56,953,300 P43,960,526

Cash and cash equivalents earn interest at the prevalling bank deposit rates. Interest earned in
2016 and 2015 amounted to P130,606 and P97,787, respectively.

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

The account consists of:

2016 2015

Unremitted member's contribution dues and fees (Note 18) P2,835,175 P1,757,953
Unremitted premiums (Note 18) 433,520 400,533
Due from officers and employees 44,452 50,075
Advances to employees 10,000 20,469
Receivable KDCI Inc, 2,681 29,287
Other receivables 502,843 489,062

P3,828,671 P2,747,379

Unremitted members’ contributions, dues and fees represents amount collected by partner
individual/ institutions on membership certificates but not yet remitted as at the end of the

financial reporting period,

Unremitted premium represents gross premiums collected by partner Individuals/institutions on all
optional policies but not yet remitted as at the end of the financial reporting perfod.

Other receivables represent accrued interest income on BLIP and CLIP.

Based on management's evaluation, the Association's recelvables are fully collectible, thus, no
allowance for impairment is necessary as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,

Management belleves that the carrying amounts of receivables approximate its fair values.




NOTE 8 -OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Unused supplies P238,082 P93,094
Prepaid expenses 102,347 80,180
P340,429 P173,274
NOTE 9 ~AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
The account consists of:
No. of Acquisition Fair Value
Shares Cost 2016
Petron preferred shares senes 24 8,000 P8,000,000 P8,360,000
Save and learned fixed income fund 2,348,914 5,000,000 5,180,765
Sun life prosperity GS fund 1,229,861 2,000,000 1,853,031

P15,000,000 P15,393,796

No. of Acquisition Fair Value
Shares Cost 2015
Petron preferred shares series 2A 8,000 PB,000,000 P8,560,000
Save and leamed fixed income fund 2,348,914 5,000,000 5,181,470
Sun life prosperity GS fund 1,229,861 2,000,000 1,874,431
P15,000,000 P15,615,901

Unrealized gain (loss) recognized in the statement of comprehensive Income in 2016 and 2015
amounted to (P222,105) and P436,759, respectively.

NOTE 10 -HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

The Account consists of:
2016 2015
Government security P66,178,366 P61,178,366
Corporate bond 20,500,000 14,500,000
P86,678,366 P75,678,366

During the year, the Association acquired additional investments amounting to P11,000,000,
Interest eamed in 2016 and 2015 amaunted to P3,563,523 and P4,004,830, respectively.
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NOTE 11 - ADVANCES TO CONTRACTOR

The amount of advances to contractor recognized amounted to P1,219,366 as at
December 31, 2016. This pertains to the Assoctation’s payment to its contractor for their services
to work on an information system for insurance management. The system will be deliverad and will
be fully operational in 2017.

NOTE 12 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The account consists of:
Office
furniture
Transportation Office Computer and
equipment improvements equipment  fixture Total

Cost
At January 1, 2015 PB49,872 P37,829  P415,023 P299,816 P1,602,540
Additions during the year - 48,720 123,479 172,199
At December 31, 2015 849,872 37,829 463,743 423,295 1,774,739
Addlitions during the year 27,750 - 197,095 37,063 261,908
Disposals during the year . - (30,265) - (30,265)
At December 31, 2016 877,622 37,829 630,573 460,358 2,006,382
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2015 396,606 - 310,673 234,178 941,457
Depreciation during

the year (Note 21) 169,974 34,677 79,454 58,634 342,739
At December 31, 2015 566,580 34,677 390,127 292,812 1,284,196
Depreciation during

the year (Note 21) 176,141 3,152 73,620 74,682 327,595
Disposals during the year . (27.821) . (27,821)
At December 31, 2016 742,721 37,829 435,926 367,494 1,583,970
Net book value
At December 31, 2016 P134,901 P- P194,647 P92,864 P422,412
At December 31, 2015 P283,292 P3,152 P73,616 P130,483 P490,543

In 2016, the Association sold two of its computer equipments. Gain on sale recognized In the
statements of comprehensive income amounted to P3,609.

There are neither restrictions on the title on the Association’s property and equipment nor any of
them are pledged as security for any of its liabilities.

The cost of fully depreciated assets still being used in the operation of the Association amounted to
P37,829 and nil as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Based on management’s assessment, there is no Indication of impairment and the carrying amount
of property and equipment can be recovered through continuous use in operations;
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NOTE 13 - OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Other funds and deposits P162,461 P-
Rental deposit (Note 22) 90,945 -
P253,406 P

Other funds and deposits pertains to the Association's contribution under Microinsurance MBA
Association of the Philippines.

NOTE 14 - TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Accounts payable P697,328 P233,116
Accrued expenses 244,581 94,875
Government dues 5,912 2,041
P947,821 P330,032

Accounts payable pertains to collection fees.

Accrued expenses pertain to expenses incurred but not yet paid such as legal and professional fees,
and operating cost incurred by the Association.

Other payables pertain to government dues and remittances. Government dues and remittances
represent contributions of employees that will be remitted to various government agencies such as
§SS, Philhealth and Pag-ibig. It also includes taxes withheld from salaries of employees and Income
payment to suppliers, which will be remitted in the subseguent manth.

NOTE 15 - AGGREGATE RESERVES

The account consists of:
2016 2015
Liability on individual equity value P67,304,401 P63,917,609
Aggregate reserve for trust liability - Reserved Funds (RF) 36,130,189 30,066,165
Basic contingent benefit reserve 200,509 164,503
Optional benefit reserve 748,406 763,668
P104,383,505 P94,911,945




2016 2015

Brekdown:
Current portion
Liability on individual equity value 3,922,456 4,154,143
Aggregate reserve for trust liability - RF 6,854,684 6,285,854
Noncurrent portion
Liability on Individual equity value 63,381,945 59,763,466
Aggregate reserve for trust liability - RF 29,275,505 23,780,311

Liability on Individual equity value represents the total amount of obligations set up by the
Association on membership certificates pertaining to 50% equity value, as required under the
Insurance Code, and any incremental amount declared by the Assoctation,

Aggregate reserve for trust liability is weekly contribution of five pesos, which shall be credited to
the fund for the account of the member. The calculations of the aggregate reserves are based on
reasonable actuarial assumptions and are in accordance with generally accepted actuarial
principles.

NOTE 16 - CLAIMS PAYABLE ON BASIC CONTINGENT BENEFIT

The account consists of incurred but not reported claims amounting to P486,273 and P268,175 as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

NOTE 17 - FUND BALANCE

Fund balance refers to the residual interest in the assets of the Association after deducting all its

liabilities. This represents the accumulated eamings of the MBA reduced by whatever losses the
Association may Incur during a certain accounting period.

Restricted fund Unrestricted
balance fund balance Total
Balance at January 1, 2015 P18,001,574 P16,970,938 P34,972,912
Movement during the year 2,302,434 5,254,252 7,556,686
Batance at December 31, 2015 P20,304,408 P22,225,190 P42,529,598
Movement during the year 2,672,629 13,481,389 16,154,018
Balance at December 31, 2016 P22,977,037 P35,706,579 P58,683,616

Restricted fund composed of guaranty fund and education and training fund. Education and training
fund refers to the amount allocated by the Association for education and training of its members,
officers and staff. Education and training fund includes the amount of payment to Kasagana-ka
Development Center that represents collection fees,

A Mutual Benefit association shall only maintain free and unassigned surplus of not more than
twenty percent (20%) of Its total liabilities as verified by the Commissioner. Any amount in excess
shall be returned to the members by way of dividends, enhancing the equity value or providing
benefits in kind and other relevant services. In addition, subject to the approval of the
Commissioner, a mutual benefit association may allocate a portion for capacity building and
research and development such as developing new products and services, upgrading and improving
operating system and equipment and continuing member education.
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As at and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the K-MBA's excess in Unrestricted
Fund Balance from twenty percent (20%) of liabilities are as follows:

Excess of Unrestricted Fund
Unrestricted Fund Balance Total liabilities 20% of Liabilities Balance from 20% of
Liabilities
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2016
P35,483,562 P106,388,386 P21,277,677 P14,205,885
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2015
P21,858,528 £95,510,152 P19,102,030 P2,756,498

NOTE 18 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the normal course of its business, the Association transacts with its related parties. These
principally consist of collection of membership and premium contribution and non-interest bearing
advances for certain expenses. Other transactions are based on terms agreed to by the parties,

Nature of the related party
Name of related party Relationship transaction
Micrafinance Funds Assigned for Member’s
Kasagana-ka Development Center (KDCI) partner Benefits (Fund Balance Account)

The following summarizes the Association's related party transactions:

Additions
Unremitted Contribution Dues and Fees during the  Payment /
2015 year Collections 2016
Affiliate
KDCI P1,757,953 P32,630,610 P31,553,388 P2,835,175
Additions
Unremitted Premiums during the  Payment /
2015 year Collections 2016
Affiliate
KDCI P400,533 P5,108,354 P5,075,367  P433,520

Details of the Association's related party transactions follow:

a. The Association will collect from KDCI members' contributions on member certificates
that will be remitted at the end of the financial reporting period,

b, The Association will collect from KDCI gross premiums on all optional policies that will
be remitted at the end of the financial reporting period.
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The outstanding balances with related parties as at December 31 are as follows:

Nature of
consideration to Details of
Terms and be provided  guarantees glven Impairment
conditions  Security  upon settiement or received
2016 2015
Unremitted
Cantribution
Dues and Fees
(Mote 7) P2,835,175 P1,757,953 Demandable Unsecured Cash Nane None
Unremitted
Premiums
(Note 7) 433,520 400,533 Demandable Unsecured Cash Naone Mane

NOTE 19 - RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The Association has a noncontributory, defined benefit plan covering all Its officers and regular
employess. Retirement benefits expense recognized in the statement of comprehensive income fs
computed based on provision of PAS 19 (Amended). The principal actuarial assumptions used to
determine the funding of the trust fund is accrued benefit actuarial cost method which take into
account the factors of investment, mortality, disability, and salary projection rates.

In 2016, the Association engaged Asian Actuaries, inc. to prepare an actuarial valuation of the
Association's retirement liability, The actuarial report is dated March 21, 2017 covering valuation
dates period January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016. The effects of the valuation are shown below.

The amounts recognized in the statements of financiat position are as follows:

2016 2015
Present value of the obligation P1,043,972 P919,927
Fair value of plan assets (455,441) (293,688)
Defined benefit obligation P588,531 P626,239

The retirement benefit cost recognized in the statements of comprehensive income as follows
(Note 21):

2016 2015
Current service cost P172,939 P107,902
Past service cost - 53,344
Interest cost 28,109 23,975
P201,048 P185,221
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a. Reconcillation of defined benefit obligation

The movement in the defined benefit obligation is as follows:

2016 2015
Present value of the obligation at January 1 P919,927 P474,403
Current service cost 172,939 107,902
Past service cost - 53,344
Interest cost 47,310 23,975
Remeasurements In other comprehensive income
Loss (gain) in defined benefit obligation from
changes in financial assumptions (16,052) 260,303
Gain in defined benefit obligation due to
experience (80,152) -
124,045 445,524
Present value of the obligation at December 31 P1,043,972 P919,927
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 P293,688 P-
Contributions paid 160,296 293,688
Expected return 19,201 -
Remeasurements in other comprehensive income
Loss In defined benefit obligation due to
experience (17,744) -
161,753 293,688
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 P455,441 P293,688
Present value of the obligation, net at
3 P588,531 P626,239

b. Remeasurements in other comprehensive income

Remeasurements in other comprehensive income represent actuarial gains and losses which are

presented at net of related deferred tax as shown below:

2016

2015

Actuarial gain (loss) recognized, net P78,460

(P260,303)




¢. Actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

The principal assumptions used in determining pension lability of the Association are shown

below:

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increases

NOTE 20 - REVENUE

The account consists of!

Gross member's contribution
Gross premium

Membership fees
Miscellaneous income

2016 2015
5.24% 5.14%
5% 5%

2016 2015
P32,004,443 P29,420,648
6,297,905 5,574,428
752,350 748,390
715,866 371,207
P39,770,564 P36,114,673

Miscellanecus income is composed of other income from K-Kalinga and income other than

contribution, premiums and membership fees.
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NOTE 21 - OPERATING EXPENSES

The account consists of:

2016 2015
Salaries, wages and benefits P3,157,936 P2,816,283
Representation and entertainment 664,280 594,797
Transportation and travel allowance 490,665 413,509
Meeting and conferences 471,949 199,547
Office supplies 369,353 365,453
Annual general assembly 329,233 -
Depreciation (Note 12) 327,595 342,739
Rental (Note 22) 325,799 -
Technical and professional fees 318,447 211,695
Professional and technical development 221,959 397,529
Retirement benefit cost (Note 19) 201,048 185,221
Marketing, advertising and promations 199,598 79,445
Taxes, licenses and fees 162,976 207,658
Research and development 159,649 185,815
Monitoring 129,345 191,655
Social and community service 120,000 300,000
Repairs and maintenance 100,549 30,105
Utilities 98,441 74,557
Donations and contributions 34,000 4,000
Reinsurance premium 32,650 13,200
Insurance 25,119 3,966
Medicine - 3,710
Bank and other charges 900 1,400
Miscellaneous 21,927 35,154

P7,963,418 P6,658,438

NOTE 22 - LEASE AGREEMENT

The Association entered into two operating lease agreements for the lease of Units 501 and 504 for
the period of two (2) years from February 1, 2016 to January 31, 2018 and from May 1, 2016 to
April 30, 2018, respectively. Total monthly rentals of P30,315 for both units shall be paid on the

first year of the lease agreement and shall increase to P33,346 on the second year,

Relative to the lease agreements, the Association paid security deposit amounting to P90,945

(Note 13).
Rent expense recognized in 2016 amounted to P325,799 (Note 21).
The future lease payments under the operating lease will be as follows:

2016 2015
Not later than one year P381,969 P-
Later than one year and not later than two years 89,523 -
P471,492 p-
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NOTE 23 - INCOME TAX EXEMPTION

The Association is exempted from income tax under Section 30 (c) of the National Internal Revenue
Code as a non-stock association organized and operated exclusively for charitable and cultural
purposes and no part of its net income or asset shall belong to or inure to the benefit of any
member, organizer, officer or any specific person. Interest earmned from the placement of
Association funds are, however, subject ta final tax, The interest income shown in the financial

statement is net of final tax,

NOTE 24 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
(BIR)

A. REVENUE REGULATIONS (RR) NO, 15-2010

On Navember 25, 2010, the BIR Issued RR No. 15-2010 which prescribes additional procedural
and/or documentary requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of
financial statements accompanying the tax returns. Under the said RR, companies are
required to disclose, in addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRS and such other
standards and/or conventions that may heretofore be adopted, In the Notes to the Financial
Statements, information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable
year, In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 15-2010 hereunder are the
Information on taxes, duties and license fees pald or accrued during the taxable year.

1. The amount of VAT output tax declared during the year and the account title and
amount/s upon which the same was based

The Association’s revenues were not subject to Value Added Tax for years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

2. The amount of VAT Input taxes claimed

The Assocfation's revenues were not subject to Value Added Tax for years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

3. The landed costs of imports and the amount of custom duties and tariff fees paid or
accrued thereon

The Association did not have any importations in 2016 and 2015 that would require for the
payment of customs duties and tariff fees.

4. The amount of excise taxes classified per major product category

The Association did not have any transactions in 2016 and 2015 which are subject to excise
tax,




5.

Documentary stamp tax (DST)

The Association did not have any transactions in 2016 and 2015 which are subject to
documentary stamp tax,

Taxes and licenses

a, Local
Duties and taxes P122,480
Business Permit 11,282
Others 29,214
P162,976
Withholding taxes

The amount of withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year amounted to:

a. Withholding tax on salaries

P276,605

Periods covered and amounts of deficlency tax assessments, whether protested or not

The Association has not yet received a final assessment notice from the Regional Office
covering the taxable year December 31, 2016 amounting to NIL, inclusive of penalties, for
deficiency income/VAT /Percentage/withholding tax, which has been protested/agreed upon.

Tax cases, and amounts Involved, under preliminary investigation, litigation and/or
prosecution In courts or bodies outside the BIR

The Association has no RATE case under preliminary investigation of the Dept. of Justice (DQJ)
involving deficiency income tax for taxable year 2016 amount to NIL,

REVENUE REGULATIONS NO, 19-2011

RR No, 19-2011 was issued on December 9, 2011 to prescribe the new BIR forms that will be
used for Income Tax filing covering and starting with Calendar Year 2011, and to modify
Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 57-2011 Pursuant to Soction 244 in relation to Sections
6{H), 51(A)(1), and 51(A)(2) of the National Internal Revenue Code of 1997 (Tax Code), as
amended, these Regulations prescribed to revise BIR Form Nos. 1700, 1701 and 1702 to reflect
the changes in information requested from the said BIR Forms and to enable the said forms to
be read by an Optical Character Reader. Under the Guidelines and Instructions of BIR Form No.
1702 - Page 4, the following schedules are prescribed under existing revenue issuances which
must form part of the Notes to the Audited Financial Statements:
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1. Revenue

Gross Member’s Contribution
Gross Premium

Membership Fees
Misceltaneous Income

2. Benefit expense

Benefit/claims expenses - BLIP
Benefit/claims expenses - CLIP
Benefit/claims expenses - Equity value
Allocation for liability on individual equity
Increase/ (decrease) in reserve for basic contingent fund
Increase/ (decrease) In reserve for optional benefit
Increase/ (decrease) in liability on Individual equity
Increase/(decrease) in aggregate reserve for trust
liability
Other expenses for members
Collection fees
Tatal benefit expense

Exempt

Regular rate

P32,004,443
6,297,905
752,350
715,866

P-

P39,770,564

Exempt

Regular rate

P6,951,019
1,390,000
3,648,112

12,394,537

253,545
(15,262)
(8,995,303)

657,867
866,724
1,109,150

P18,260,389

The Association does not have expenses arising from revenue subject to regular rate tax.

3. Non-Operating and Taxable Other Income

The Association did not have any other income in 2016 and 2015 which are subject to tax.

4, Taxes and licenses

a, Local
Duties and taxes
Business Permit
Others
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P122,480
11,282
29,214

P162,576




5. Operating expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits
Representation and entertainment
Transportation and travel allowance
Meeting and conferences

Office supplies

Annual general assembly
Depreciation

Rental

Technical and professional fees
Professional and technical development
Retirement benefit cost

Marketing, advertising and promotions
Taxes, licenses and fees

Research and development
Monitoring

Social and community service
Repairs and maintenance

Utilities

Donations and contributions
Reinsurance premium

Insurance

Medicine

Bank and other charges
Miscellaneous

P3,157,936
664,280
490,665
471,949
369,353
329,233
327,595
325,799
318,447
221,959
201,048
199,598
162,976
159,649
129,345
120,000
100,549

98,441
34,000
32,650
25,119

900
21,927

P7,963,418
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KASAGANA-KA
Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of Kasagana Ka Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. is responsible for all information
and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Return for the year ended December 31,
2016, Management is likewise responsibte for all information and representations contained in the
financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting
pericd, Furthermore, the management fs responsible for all information and representations
contained in all the other tax retums filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the
Value-Added Tax and/or percentage tax returns, withholding tax retums, documentary stamp tax
returns, and any and all other tax returns.

In this regard, the management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Retum are in accordance with
the books and records of the Association, complete and correct in all material respects. Management
likewise affirms that:

(a) the Annual Income Tax Retum has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

{b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax
return pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and
maintained in the Association's books and records in accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances; and

(c) the Association has filed all applicable tax retums, reports and statements required to be
filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions
shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those

contested fn good faith.
ISABEL ILIW-ILIW ISABEL ILIW-ILIW
Chairman of the Board President

Vol

MARISSA LOYOLA
Treasurer

Signed this 10th day of April, 2017

#5 Don Froncisco Street, Don Enique Helmtx.- Begy. Holy Spirt Commenwedalth Ave. Quezon City
lelefax: (63} 290-7915
Email: kasoganakg,mba@gmail.com
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LETICIA C. TAGLE

Page 1 of 1

file:///C:/Users/Eva/AppData/Local/ Temp/%7BDES3 TES6-A20F 4FES-AF80-F82A62. . 4/17/2017




BIR Form No, 1702EX Page 1 of |

June 2013

Annual Income Tax Return | {5a £ I R T |
Page 3 - Schedules 1 & 2 HAREX . 'Mi

R

2416121210351 10,0,0,0 KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATI

::m'mlml_,;-',t. - D [ach actional shael’s, If Nacass
sy e = .
2 Saie of Servioss 39,770,564
3 Loass of Propertes - 0
A Total mun of twers 7103 39,770,564
4 Luss: Sales Ratums, Alowances and Discounts 0
6 Net Sales/Revenues/FleceiplaFoes wan « Less tun sy [T art v iwn 317 38,770,564
L Schedule 2 - Cost 0f Sales {Amch aefion sreeth, ¥ i |
_Sohedule 2A - Cost of Salee (For thoos |
1 Merchanding Inventry - Boginning 0
2 Add Purchaso of Morchandiso 0
3 Total Goods Avatablo far Salo mwn v s 1 8 11 0
4 Luss: Merchandise - Ending 0
5 Cont 0f Sales (hem 7 Luas dwm 4/ (70 Genacide 2 Ao 1) 0

ot Sales (For those Engapged In Manutacturing)

& Diroct Maturals, Baginming [ RS
7 Adk: Purchuses of Ovect Muturiuls g b T SRR e
‘mm”hm&“ﬂ 0 ! - '4 = ~r.. é ;-l -'
9 Losy: Direct Malerinly, Freing ol =W Pa=Ng
10 Raw Mastorinés Linocd twn & Lo fees 3 0
11 Direct Labor 0
12 Manutacturing Overhoad - 0
13 Total Monutacturing Cost G o dare 12, 114 1) 0
14 Addt Work in Procass, Bogniing o P AMECRNCE I _;ﬂw
15 Loss' Wark in Process, Ending o = ;_%»"P'v o
16 Cost 0f Goods MnUABEILTED i5im o e 135 14 Les e 15) |
17 Ad: Fiusod Goods. Begring of e ':..':I
10 Lews: Finshed Goods, Ending 0 I I s T
78 Cost of Goods Munufaciured and Soid
0
20 Diroct Cnarges. - Salares, Wagas and Banafits 0
21 iroct Changes - Masoriala. Supples and Fsodtes 0
22 Ouuct Charges - Depteciation 0
23 Diroct Charges - Rontal 0
24 Diroct Chargos - Outside Serdces 18,260,388
25 Diroct Charges - Others. °
26 Total COst Of Servioes (um o beww 10 e 251 (T Sshuchie 2w 27} 10,260,389
| 27 Total Cost ot SakoaSarvicen man e 5 14 66 f ey (ToPur/Vaen 2y | 10,260,388)

file:///C:/Users/Eva/AppData/Local/ Temp/% 7BDES37TES6-A20F -4FES-AF80-F82A62...  4/17/2017




BIR Form No. 1702EX

Page | of |

Annual Income Tax Return .W
Page 4 - Schodules 3 & 4 v
TN :
2/41612(21(0 35119990 MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATI
1 0
2 0
3 0
4 Touw! Otfer Taxsbe Inoomm Not Subjeced 10 Finel Tex ot 13 (To At 30 0
0
3 [
| 0
|5 Bad Detis 0
& Cruvtatia Contrbvons 154,000
7 Commissions 8
8 Communicatan, Lght and Water 50,441
9 Oepaton 0
10 Dapraciation 327,598
11 Ditoctor's Feas 0
12 Fringe Bonofts 0
13 Fusl and Ol [}
4 Insurance 25,119
15 inorast 0
16 Jansorial and Messengerla) Sarvices 0
17 Lossas 0
18 Managomant wnd Consuttancy Foo 0
19 Miscollansous 21,827
20 Oes Suopies 389,383
21 Other Sorvices 0
22 Professlonal Fees 318,447
23 Rantai 325,769
24 Aspairs ard Malntenarcy ~ (Labor or Labor & Matorials) 0
25 Flepairs and Marntanance — ~ (Matorials/Suppliss) 100.549
26 Aepresantation and Enterminment 664, 280
27 Revearch and Dovelopmant 159,648
28 Royalies 0
28 Savaries and Alownnoes 3,157,936
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BIR Form No. 1702EX Page 1 of 1

BiR Form No,
Annual Income Tax Return | y70°5"c% ] : I
Page 5 - Schedules 4,5 & 6 rhas o > !

[ TiN ,
21416)2(21013{511°/0/0,0] IKASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATI
30 Sacurity Sorvicas 0
3188, G8I8, Phiealth, HOMF and Other Contibutions 0
ahumdm 162.976
33 Toking Fees 0
ammm 221.959
35 Transportation and Travel 490,665

— :
3 471,949
37 |MONITORING 129,348
3 [RETIREMENT BENEFIT COST 201,048
3 |0 THERS 362,783

17,967,687

0
3 0
A Tobal o o howss 1 33y 17,967,687
% [FINANCE INCOME 4,420,930
6 0
12 0
8 0
0 TS Guim o e 5l 4,420,930
10 Not Taxable lncame (Loss) (e 4 Less bwn §1 13,346,757
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BIR Form No. 1702EX

Page 1 of |

Annual Income Tax Return | {7057y W B R AR el |
Page 6 - Schedules 7 & 8 June 2013 v
1214164220 3:5(1,0;0,0,0 KASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATI
— :
1 Current Assats 61,122,400
2 Long-Term lnvesimont 102,072,162
3 Proporty, Plant and Equipmant ~ Ne| 422,412
| 4 Long-Tefm Rscoivables 0
8 inanglbio Acseta 0
6 Othor Assats. 1,472,772
7 Total Assets Tus o b ( o) 165,089,746
and

me 13,160,149
9 Long Tarm Listiliiss 93,245,981
10 Dolorrad Credits- 0
11 Othor Lisbikses [
12 Yotal Liabilities st = ks 21 11) 106,406,130
13 Capital Slock 0
14 Additional Paidn [
15 Hetained Earnings 58,683,616
16 Total Equity S o fwrw 140 15) 58,683,618
17 Total Liabilities and B of ey 12 8 10} 165,089,746
ule 8~ _ iders Intor 20 DTS or i 3
REGISTERED NAME TIN Capital Cantribution T
ISABEL M. ILIW-ILIW 240 996 361 000 1 1
JERLENE B. PEREZ 2203862927 000 1 1
[MARISSA A. LOYOLA 461 375474 000 1 1
AILENE V. RAMOS 455129734 000 1 1
MARIVIC R. LOTERTE 4855705088 000 1 1
ANITA L. MANUNDO 249 816808 000 1 1
MA. TERESA G. BUCAD 137 1476592 000 1 1
ELIZABETH G. FUENTES 480883679 000 1 1
PERLA F. BATINGAL 120 586 639 000 1 1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
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BIR Form No. 1702EX

Page 1 of |

Annual Income Tax Return
Page 7 - Schedules 9 & 10

88 Foem No,

1702-EX

Juae 2013

RS EE 2R R
;-—i 6 ¢22 03,51 ,40,0,0,0 ASAGANA-KA MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATI

) Sale Exchange of Shares of Stodf

| SRSe] Ao SRS | 6 P T wnared

1 bntoreoty. 0 0 0

2 Aoyalies 0 0 0

3 Dividonds 0 0 [}

& Prizas ana Whennings 0 [} 0
1

§ Doscrition of Proparty i, et sy e

& OCT/TCT/CCT/Tax Duciarason Mo,

7 Certilicate Authorlzing Regsimbion (CAR) Mo.

8 Actunl Amaunt¥ar Maskat ValuwNet Capity Galns 0 0

9 Finvill Tax Withoks Paid 0 0

10 Kind (PSICS) / Stock Gartfcate Series No.

V) Other incame [Specify;

11 Cunificate Authorizing Rogstration (CAR) No.

12 Numiber of Shares 0 0
13 Dt of lnsuo (MMDOYYYY) o o o o o e
14 Actuai Amount¥ ai- Market Valus/Net Capral Gaing 0 0
18 Pnal Tax Winheks Paid I o

16 Other Incomo Subjoct 1o Frual Tax Undet Sacions
mmcumm;w

17 Actual Amour®/Fair Murke! Vakie'Net Capital Gens

18 Final Tax WithhekVPaid
19 Total Final Tax Withheld/Pald mws o ves 1€ v 40, 84 88, 154, 1301 104 & 188

1 Hetum of Promium fod AmnousFar Matet vk

2 Description of Proporty imi it smmwnms, o)

3 Moxdo of Tranoler g Qevean)

4 Corficatn Authonzing Registraton (GAR] No.

8 Actual Amourd/Falr Marks! Vatuo

& Onor Income/Racepis Under
Sac. 32 {8) ot the Tax Gods, as amended Ssec)

B Tatal income/Roceipts Exempt from INCOMS Tax jSum o ke 1. 54 4, 74 4 A1
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Ll Gmall - Tax Retun Recaipt Gorfirmation

M Gmail KASAGANAKA MBA <kasaganaka.mbs@gmail.com>
Tax Return Receipt Confirmation
ebirforms-noreply@bir.gov.ph <ebirforms-noreply @bir.gov.ph> Mon, Apr 17, 2017 at 8:16 AM

To: kasaganaka mba@gmail.com

This confirms receipt of your submission with the following detalis subject to validation by BIR:
File name:  246220351000-1702EX-1216.xm|

Date received by BIR: 17 Apnil 2017

Time recelved by BIR: 08:06 AM

Penalties may be imposed for any violation of the pravisions of the NIRC and issuances thereof.

FOR RETURNS WITH PAYMENT
Please print this e-mail together with the RETURN and proceed to pay through the Authorized Agent Bank /
Collection Agent / GCASH or use other payment options.

This is a system-generated email, Please do not reply.

Bureau of Intemal Reyvenue

Sssmsamass

DISCLAIMER

This email and its attachments may be confidential and are intended solely
for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed,

If you are not the Intended recipient of this emall and its attachments, you
must take no action based upon them, nor must you dissemingte, distribute or
copy this a-mail. Please contact the sender immediately if you believe you
have received this amail in emor,

E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed 1o be secure or emor-freée. The
recipient should check this email and any allachments for the presence of
viruses, The Bursau of intemal Revenue does not accept Babllity for any
errors or omissions In the contents of this message which arise as a result
of e-mail transmission.
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